
 

June 23, 2020 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, June 23, 2020 - *REVISED 

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Kit Watson                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Susan Reams        Kevin Hardiek, CIO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden       Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
         Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
           
         GUESTS: Cassie Sauer, President & CEO, WSHA  
             Jacqueline Barton True, VP of Rural Health Programs  

                    Adam Zoller, Chief Information Security Officer, Providence 
   
  
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
      A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
III.  QUALITY 
       A.  Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA) Update (Attachment R)    Cassie Sauer, President & CEO, WHSA                    
 
IV.  SERVICES 
       A.  Providence IT Security Update (Attachment H)                                                Adam Zoller, Chief Information Security 
                                  Officer, Providence 
 
       B.  Replacement Facility Feasibility Discussion (Attachment J)  Craig  
             (Attachment J-1) (Attachment B) 
 
       C.  YVFWC Update          Craig   
    
  V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Model (Attachment V) (Attachment W)   Craig/Dr. Brian Sollers 
 
   
 

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

{‘3 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

’ 

A \ 

’\ 
l“ 

,'\ 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 

(c b— ‘,<,\ 



 

June 23, 2020 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION        Craig 
      *A.  RCW 42.30.110 (g) – Personnel – To evaluate the qualifications  
              or an applicant for public employment or to review the performance  
              of a public employee.           
                        
VII.  ADJOURN    



 

June 25, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
THURSDAY, June 25, 2020 - *REVISED 

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Kit Watson        Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
Susan Reams                       Kevin Hardiek, CIO   
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
         Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
              
         
 

   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
       Action Requested – Agenda 
 
IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for May 28, 2020.    
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #151772 through #152307 in the amount of $4,150,292.24;   
              Surplus Items Resolution #000429; #001191; Board Policies #100.0037, #100.0038; #100.0039; #100.0040.  
              Action Requested – Consent Agenda  
          
V.   MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.    Medical Staff Report and Credentialing                 Dr. Brian Sollers            
               1.  New Appointment 

      Action Requested – New Appointment 
                     Lindsey J. Smith, DO – Provisional/Active staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 

                 effective June 25, 2020 through December 24, 2020. 
 
      Brandon Peterson, MD – Provisional/Consulting staff with requested privileges in Pathology 
                 effective June 25, 2020 through December 24, 2020. 
 
                 
 

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

P‘s Prosser 
L Memorial Health 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



 

June 25, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

                James Giles, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
                June 25, 2020 through December 24, 2020. 
 
                Elizabeth Walz, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
               June 25, 2020 through December 24, 2020. 
 
                    
              2.  Advancement from Provisional Status  

     Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional Status 
                    None.   

 
              3.  Reappointment   
           Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges                      
      Jeffrey Zuckerman, MD – Reappointment to Active staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Ryan McDonald, CRNA  – Reappointment to Allied Health Professional staff with requested clinical 
                privileges in Anesthesia from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Steven Zirker, PA-C  – Reappointment to Allied Health Professional staff with requested clinical  
                privileges in Family Medicine from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Shannon Calhoun, DO  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Kathryn Cambron, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Jason Grennan, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     David Henley, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Jonathan Jaksha, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Steven McCormack, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
                Matthew Mendlick, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
                Gregory Peters, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Mohammed Quraishi, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges 
                in Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
     Alexander Serra, MD  – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                Diagnostic Radiology from June 25, 2020 through June 24, 2022. 
 
 
                    



 

June 25, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
VI.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

A. Review Financial Reports for May 2020 (Attachment BB)                                               David                                                     
   Action Requested – Financial Reports 

           
B. COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachment I) (Attachment J) (Attachment K)                                              David/Craig                

 
          C.    PMH Foundation Bylaws (Attachment CC)                Shannon 

   Action Requested – PMH Foundation Bylaws 
          
         D.   PMH Foundation Scope of Service Agreement between PMH and PMH Foundation (Attachment DD) Shannon 
  Action Requested – PMH Foundation Scope of Service Agreement  

 
VII.   EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
       *A.  CEO Evaluation 
               Action Requested – 2019 Incentive Compensation Program     Commissioner Kenny  
 
         B.  Review New Employee Orientation Program                           Ro                                                                                                
 
VIII.  SERVICES 
         A.  Marketing Update                   Shannon  
          
IX.  QUALITY    
           A. COVID-19 Update                 Merry/Dr. Sollers  
         
           B.  2019 CAH Annual Review (Attachment L)                                     Kristi 
                 Action Requested – 2019 CAH Annual Review  
 
           C.  Contract Review Process (Attachment Q)                                           Kristi 
           
           D.   Legislative and Political Updates            Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
           F.   CEO/Operations Report                         Craig 
 
     X.  ADJOURN 
 
     



PMH 
Board of Commissioners 

Work Plan - FY2020 

‘22:? (‘5 P r0 5 s e r V' 
EmP'Wees \! M a mo ri 0| H ea Ith service 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

Mo_th Goals & Objectives Education 
7'71" I r - 11 ' I f QUALITY: EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 1 

- Review/Approve 2020 Strategic Plan 0 Review 2019 Employee Engagement 
and 2020 Patient Ca re Scorecards Survey Results 

0 Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict - Review 2019 Medical Staff 
of Interest Statements Engagement Survey Results 

0 Approve 2020 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans QUALITY: 

0 Select and Approve Board Officers I Review Board Self-Evaluation 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
«- Review semi-annual financial 

performance report for PMH Clinics 

SERVICES: 
0 Wellness Center 
0 Sunnyside 
0 Astria Health 
0 Update Architectural Services 



Month Goals & Objectives _ Education 
'I " {fir—“T — “‘I PATIENT LOYALTY: PATIENT LOYALTY: 

' 0 Approve Studer Contract 0 Review Customer Service Program 

QUALITY: EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Approve 2020 Corporate Compliance 0 Attend AHA Governance Conference 

I lflan 
. 0 Approve 2020 Infection Prevention QUALITY: 
I I Control Plan 0 Review 2019 Corporate Compliance 
| 0 Approve 2020 Board Action Plan Report 
I a Review 2019 Infection Prevention 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: Summary 
«- Approve Hospital-wide Patient 

' Monitoring System 
I 0 Review and Approve 2020 Leadership 
1' I I ‘ Incentive Compensation Program 

3 Arch QUALITY: PATIENT LOYALITY: 
II o Review/Approve Board Polices 0 Review Patient Engagement Plan 
I 0 Review 2019 Utilization Review 
I _ MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: Performance 
“I 0 Support Providers’ Day Celebration o Approve 2020 Utilization Review Plan 

E l' EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Approve IAFF Contract (EMS) 0 Review Employee Performance 

I Report 
' I FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 0 Regulatory Compliance 
'1' 0 Accept 2019 Audit Report 
u FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
1‘. 0 Presentation of the 2018 Audit 
W. _ Report by Auditors 
'; P priT " " I QUALITY: QUALITY: 
" 0 Approve 2020 Community Benefits 0 Strategic & Patient Ca re Score Cards 

Report 0 Review 2019 Community Benefits 
Report 



Goals 8: Objectives Education 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

0 Conduct CEO Evaluation 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

0 Review Employee Engagement Plan 
0 Review 2019 Leadership Performance 

(LEM) 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Review 2019 FPPE/OPPE Summary 

l EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
' 0 Support Hospital Week 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Review PMH Uniform Program 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHP: 
I PMH Foundation Update 

SERVICES: 
0 Review Replacement Facility 

Feasibility Study 

MEDICAL STAFF 
0 Medical Staff Engagement Plan 

"'" QUALITY: 
- Review/Approve Board Polices 
- Approve 2019 CAH Annual Review 

QUALITY: 
0 Report 2020 01 Utilization Review 
a Contract Review Process 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Review New Employee Orientation 

Process 

SERVICES: 
0 Marketing Update 
0 Review PMH IT Security Plan 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 
0 Review Cultural Transformation 

Program 



Goals & Objectives Education 
- Attend midsummer BOC, Medical 

Staff, and Leadership Engagement 
Activity 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
0 Approve Audit Firm 

l 

l 
l l - 
l 
l 

SERVICES: 
0 EMS Review 

0 Review Nuclear Medicine Services 

QUALITY: 
0 Quality Committee Report 

SERVICES: 0 Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
Approve Nuclear Medicine 
Renovation EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

' y 0 Employee Health Update 
' | 

l FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
‘ I ‘ 0 Review Semi-annual Financial 
I l Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

ll - Auditor Selection Review 
l I 0 Compare PMH Financial Metrics to 
‘ ’ National Standards (Cleverly) 
il II 0 Review HR/Accounting Software (IT) 

August - I EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: No Board Work Session 
0 Attend end of summer Engagement 

Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
I all staff 

i I QUALITY: 
0 Na ntage Update 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
o Centralized Scheduling/P05 

Collections Update 



Goals & Objectives Education 
- Attend midsummer BOC, Medical 

Staff, and Leadership Engagement 
Activity 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
0 Approve Audit Firm 

l 

l 
l l - 
l 
l 

SERVICES: 
0 EMS Review 

0 Review Nuclear Medicine Services 

QUALITY: 
0 Quality Committee Report 

SERVICES: 0 Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
Approve Nuclear Medicine 
Renovation EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

' y 0 Employee Health Update 
' | 

l FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
‘ I ‘ 0 Review Semi-annual Financial 
I l Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

ll - Auditor Selection Review 
l I 0 Compare PMH Financial Metrics to 
‘ ’ National Standards (Cleverly) 
il II 0 Review HR/Accounting Software (IT) 

August - I EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: No Board Work Session 
0 Attend end of summer Engagement 

Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
I all staff 

i I QUALITY: 
0 Na ntage Update 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
o Centralized Scheduling/P05 

Collections Update 



I. 
g 

Goals 8: Objectives Education 
QUALITY: 

o Review/Approve Board Polices 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

a Review Banking Services 

Peta ber QUALITY: 
0 Conduct 2021 Strategic Planning 

Retreat 
0 Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
0 Review iVantage Update 

[ November" 
I 

I 

l 

_. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
l . Approve AFSCME Contract 

J FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
.. 0 Approve Budget and Property Tax 
l l R e q u e s t  for County Commissioners 

QUALITY: 
o iVantage Update 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Review LDIs and status update on key 

Studer initiatives 

SERVICES: 
0 Review draft 2021 Strategic Plan; 

2021 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2021 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 
- Review draft 2020 Budget 

QUALITY: 
- Complete Board Self-Evaluations 
o Review/Approve Board Polices 
- Approve the 2021 Environment of 

Care Plan 

1.. 
I 

l 

QUALITY: 

0 Review the 2020 Environment of 
Care Plan 



Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 

0 Approve 2021 Strategic Plan; 2021 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2021 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

0 Approve 2021 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

' EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 
0 Attend holiday celebration 



{‘BPFOSSGF ' f ' ' ' 
In." Memorial Heouh . 2020 — Strategic Plan Scorecfi'rd 

- "WouId 

- "Would 
- "Would Recommend" 

Recommend" 

LII'I‘IOVEI‘ 

Pain 
of Active Medical Staff 

in Accounts 

otal Labor 

. -. :::1'.‘«.";.'r:1?_=.;fl.r; rII 
1: ' ow within 10% of G ' _ 
Red More than 10% below Goa! 

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number 



F‘s Pr sser . -- .. ~- ' . t 
‘L" MemgialHeolth :, 2020- Patient 6C _. , ' . ' F 

Goal Areas&lndicators mesaal Jan Feb March June Dec zazowo 2019 

Seen 8.: 
3!} 

time 
Time to ECG & 



Visnon 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

I Dr. Steve Kenny 
Dr. Sharon Dietrich 
Keith Sattler 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Susan Reams 
Kit Watson 
Brandon Bowden 

I. Call to Order 

”(:4 b Prosser V' 
Memorial Health semi“ 

Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 

. . Respect 
MIssuon: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

Ii 
_ 

2 I
ll 

I 
J'r

 
_ 

m
. 

I
.
' 
|
 

-
—

_
.

.
 

h.—
 

1
?
:-

 

0
0

0
.

0
0

0
"

 

Craig Marks, CEO 
Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
David Rollins, CFO 
Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Kevin Hardiek, CIO 
Kristi Mellema, CCO 
Dr. Brian Sollers 

Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Bestebreur at 6:02 p.m. 

«- Dr. Jacobo Rivero, ACMO 0 None 
«- Christi Doornink, Director - 

Emergency Services 
0 Luke Zarecor/DZA (CPA) 
- Joe Lodge/ DZA (CPA) 
0 Gary Hicks/G.L.Hicks Financial, 

LLC 

II. Public Comment There was no public Comment 

A. PMH-Medical Staff Eng—agement 
Plan (Attachment AA) 

D_r. Rivera and Christi Doornink presented 
the 2020 PMH Medical Staff Engagement 
Plan. Their goal is to enhance Medical Staff 
Satisfaction which is currently at 89%. 

None None 

A. RCW 42. 30. 110 (b) Real Estate — 
To consider the selection of a site 
or the acquisition of real estate by 

ilease 

At 6: 15 the Board announced that they would go into Executive Session Which was expected to last 60 minutes. 



' or purchase when public 
knowledge regarding such 
consideration would cause a 
likelihood of increased price. 
B. RCW 42.30.110 i(iii) — Legal 
Counsel - Litigation or legal risks of 
a proposed action or current 
practice that the agency has 
identified when public discussion of 
the litigation or legal risks is likely 
to result in an adverse legal or 
financial consequence to the 
agency. 
C. RCW 42.30.110 (g) - Personnel — 
To evaluate the qualifications of an 
applicant for public employment or 
to review the performance of a ' 
public employee. 
The Board resumed their _reg_ular= business meeting at 6: 45 p. m. 

_EavIcEs_1-= I . ‘ ”1";__' ':_"_I_ 
A. Review Replacement Hospital Luke Zarecor and Joe Lodge, from DZA, This matter will be 
Feasibility Study (Attachment BB) discussed the results of the Feasibility Study discussed further 

they performed on the building of a at future Board 
replacement facility for PMH. Gary Hicks Meetings. 
discussed the study in relationship to what 
the USDA would be looking for. The study 
was very favorable from the USDA (funding 
source) perspective. 

' H I I E I I I  _II II I: '_'__ '_ _' _'_ l” "' ' ' ____ ' 
There being no further regular business to attend to Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8: 03 p. m. 



Vision Val 5 
Patients ‘« ‘b P r 0  8 S e r Accoi‘teability 
EmP'Wees Memorial Health 53““ 
Medical Stafi= Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

._ __ -'ARD'MEE'|T s l  l-Li' E5%!J 5?! 5 ;  _ _~_ _- 
'. —'¢0MMISSIONE _ ‘ IF!" Al'- " ' I ' I ] :  _..l'_' __ _ _ I T  a; _Ii _"._l _ _I .. _. _ 
0 Dr. Steve Kenny oCraig Marks, CEO 0 Dr. Wali Martin MedIcal Staff None 
0 Glenn Bestebreur a Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
0 Susan Reams 0 David Rollins, CFO 
. Brandon Bowden I Ro Kmetz, CHRO 
«- Sharon Dietrich, M.D. - Kevin Hardiek, CIO 
0 Kit Watson :- Kristi Mellema, C00 
0 Keith Sattler 0 Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

I. Call to Order Meeting was called to order by None 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:03 pm. 

II. Public Comment None None None 
III. APPROVE AGENDA None Commissioner Reams made a motion to 

approve the Agenda. The Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich and 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed, and 0 
abstained. 

IV. APPROVE CONSENT " None Commissioner Dietrich made a motion to None 
AGENDA approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Bowden and 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed, and 0 

. abstained. 



L III-mm 
B. Medical Staff— 

Credentialing 
Dr. Martin presented th—Ie following 
New Appointment: 
Pratik Bhattacharya, MD — 
Provisional/Telemedicine staff with 
requested privileges in Neurology 
effective May 28, 2020 through 
November 27, 2020. 

4_L__ifi;fiqh [— 

A motion to approve the New Appointment 
and requested Clinical Privileges that have 
been reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive Committee 
for the new appointment of the following 
providers was made by Commissioner Sattler 
and seconded by Commissioner Reams. The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed, and 
0 abstained. 

o Patritattacharya, MD 
Dr. Martin presented the following 
Advancement from Provisional Status: 
Becca Warnick, ARNP - Allied Health 
Professional staff with privileges in 
Family Medicine effective 
May 28, 2020 through September 26, 
2021. 

Syed Abbas, MD -— Telemedicine staff 
with privileges in Neurology effective 
May 28, 2020 through 
December 19, 2021. 

Abdelrahman Beltagy, MD — 
Telemedicine staff with privileges in 
Neurology effective May 28, 2020 
through December 19, 2021. 

Sheila Smith, MD - Telemedicine staff 
with privileges in Neurology effective 
May 28, 2020 through 
December 19, 2021. 

A motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Status that has been reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and the Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner Reams 
and seconded by Commissioner Watson. The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 Opposed, and 
0 abstained. 

o Becca Warnick, ARNP 
o Syed Abbas, MD 
0 Abdelrahman Beltagy, MD 
0 Sheila Smith, MD 

None 



A. Review Financial 

Dr. Martin presented the following 
Reappointments: 
Susan Whitaker DO — Reappointment 
to Active staff with requested clinical 
privileges in Emergency Medicine from 
May 28, 2020 through May 27, 2022. 

Danielle Whitley, MD — Reappointment 
to Locum Tenens staff with requested 
clinical privileges in Emergency 
Medicine from May 26, 2020 through 
May 27: 2022. 

" All? :i_ ____ - L ' 

David Rollins presented the April 2020 Commissioner Bestebreur made a motion to 

A motion to approve the Reappointmentand 
requested Clinical Privileges that have been 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and the Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Bowden and seconded 
by Commissioner Dietrich. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed and 0 abstained. 

- Susan Whitaker, DO 
0 Danielle Whitley, MD 

Reports for April Financial Reports. approve the Financial Report for April 2020 
2020 which was seconded by Commissioner 
(Attachment DD) Bowden. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 

opposed and 0 abstained. 
B. COVID-19 Financial David Rollins presented the COVID-19 None. David will correct 

Plan (Attachment E) Financial Operations Forecast through the COVID—19 
December 2020. It was noted that Financial Operations 
there were errors in several of the Forecast for 2020 
expense categories when compared to and email it to the 
the 2020 Budget. Board. 

E. PMH Foundation Shannon Hitchcock presented an None None 
Update (Attachment update on the PMH Foundation. The 
EE) Foundation Bylaws and a Scope of 

Services Agreement between PMH and 
the Foundation are currently being 
reviewed by a subcommittee of the 
Foundation Board and will be 
presented to the Foundation Board and 
PMH Board of Commissioners for 
approval in June. The Foundation 
Board approved reimbursement of 
$21,500 to PMH for the re-startup costs 
of the Gift Shop. The Foundation is still 



hoping to hold a PMH Foundation Golf 
Tournament on September 19 pending 
COVIID- 19 restrictions at that time. 

' 7  II:- -IH'-II 
A. Review PMH Ro Kmetz presented an overview of a 

Uniform Program) proposed PMH Uniform Program. The 
Attachment Y) Program was included in the 2020 

Strategic Plan however, has been put 
on hold until 2021. 

‘ “ I_'I I3 - - 1 ; iIrIi' i —  
A. COVID-19 Update Merry Fuller presented an update on None None 

the current status of COVlD-19 testing, 
PPE supplies, and its impact on PMH. 
The COVID—19 Task Force continues to 
meet two times weekly. 

B. Practice Merry Fuller gave an update on the None .__ None 
Transformation Practice Transformation Grant 
Grant Update including progress and achievements 
(Attachment 0) being made clue to changes in 

processes. The primary focus for the 
remainder of 2020 will be effective and 
meaningful communication with 
patients and families. 

C. Legislative and Glenn Bestebreur gave an update on None None 
Political Updates the Legislative and Political fronts from 

both Federal and State issues 
surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic. 

D. CEO Report Despite COVlD-19, everyone had 3 None 
great Hospital Week. We received 
several thank-you notes from 
employees and Craig appreciated 

_ everyone’s efforts to make it a success. 
There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the regular business meeting at 7:40 pm. The Board 
entered Executive Session at 7: 45 which was expected to last approximately 1 hour. 

EECUTIVE SESSION , _ _-_.. __ , . . . I”. *=—- — 
J—' ' ——_ " S _ — —  —_ —_ : — —  — ‘  _ _ _ : _  

A. RCW 42. 30. 110 i(iii) - Contract— Litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that theagencyhas identified when public 
_ discussion of the litigation or legal risks Is likely to result In an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency. 



B. RCW 42. 30.110{g)-— Personnel— To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a 
public employee. 
Executive Session ended at 8: 30p. m. and Open Session Resumed. 

There being no further regular business to attend to Commissioner Kenny djourned the meeting at 8. 33 p. m. 



"1:1? {‘5 P r0 3 s e r " '  
Emp'c’yees Ll Memorial Health SEW‘C" 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, June 24, 2020 

12:00 p.m. - VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

MEMBERS: STAFF: 
Keith Sattler Craig Marks 
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins 
Brandon Bowden Stephanie Titus 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVE MINUTES 
Action Reguested — May 26, ‘2020 Minutes 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
A. Review Financials - May (Attachment BB) David 

Action Reguested - April 2020 Financial Statements 

B. COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment I) (Attachment .I) (Attachment K) David 

C. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal David/Stephanie 

D. Voucher Lists David 
Action Reguested - Voucher List (#151772 - #152307 for $4,150,292.24) 

E. Surplus Items Resolution David 
Action Re.guested-.-. #000429 & #001191 

ADJOURN 



3332:." (‘3 P r0 5 s e r V' 
EmP'Wees LI M e m o r i o I H e o Ith Service 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services ‘ . Respect 
Financial MISSION TO improve the health Of our community. Excellence 

FINANCE COMMI1TEE MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, May 26, 2020 

5:00 p.m. - VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

MEMBERS: STAFF: 
Keith Sattler Craig Marks 
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins 
Brandon Bowden Stephanie Titus 

CALL TO ORDER 
Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m. 

I. APPROVE MINUTES 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to approve the Finance Committee Meeting minutes for April 29, 2020 as 
presented was made by Glenn Bestebreur. The Motion was seconded by Keith Sattler and 
approved. 

ll. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
A. David Rollins reviewed the Financial Statements for April (Attachment DD). Net income of 
$986,000 was driven by $2.2 million in Federal Funds to bring PMH back to budget due to loss of 
revenue in March and April. 

ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the April Financial Statements as presented to the PMH 
Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Bestebreur. The Motion was 
seconded by Brandon Bowden and approved. 

8. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal 
Stephanie reviewed performance and work plans for continued improvement. The net accounts 
receivable is at 48 days and cash at 152 days. 

C. Voucher List 
ACTION ITEM 
A motion to recommend approval of the Voucher List (#151306 - #151771 for $4,921,713.77) as 
presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Glenn Besterbreur and seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and approved. 

May 26, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



D. Financial Projections / COVlD-19 Funds (Attachment M) 
David shared that we are projecting to hit budget by year end if COVID phases out and 
volumes return utilizing 100% of Federal Funds. 

E. Work Plan in Response to Audit Management Letter (Attachment HH and II) 
Stephanie presented the Work Plan in response to the Audit Management Letter. There 
were no further questions. 

Ill. ADJOURN 
Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:52 pm. 

May 26, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



MEMORANDUM

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH

FROM: CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO

DATE: JUNE 2020

RE: CEO REPORT

______________________________________________________________________________

SERVICES

1. Yakima Valley Farm Workers Clinics (YVFWC)
For the first time in several months I am not opening my Board Report with a COVID-19

pandemic update, and it sure feels good.  Since I arrived at PMH, almost four years ago, we
have been trying to improve our relationships with all area healthcare providers and
organizations.  One of the largest is YVFWC, which ceased some of their operational
relationship with PMH in 2013 and began taking most of their patients to Sunnyside Hospital.
Our continued efforts and Sunnyside Hospital’s struggles have resulted in formal discussions
between PMH and YVFWC about how we can once again work together.  These discussions
have gone very well, and I am pleased to report that we signed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) that re-establishes our relationship with YVFWC (Attachment A). The
MOU goes into effect September 1, 2020 and Sunnyside Hospital was notified that YVFWC is
realigning with PMH.

Our relationship with YVFWC is multi-faceted and includes assisting with their family
practice residency program, the active participation of several of their providers in our call
programs (OB, Peds, C-Section) and on our Medical Staff Committees.  We welcome the YVFWC
providers back and look forward to working with them to improve the health of our greater
community.  While the call contracts and specifics are still being worked out (we hope to
finalize a call contract in a week or two), the addition of several more providers on our call
rosters will lessen and even eliminate our need for locum tenens providers to take call.  It is
estimated that this change alone will save PMH more than $500,000 per year, and enable us to
provide more consistent care to all patients.  This relationship will also give our specialty
providers a renewed opportunity to earn referrals from the YVFWC providers and is likely to
result in increased patient volumes throughout PMH.  It should be noted, however, the real
winners in this new relationship are the citizens of the communities we serve.  By once again
working together, PMH and YVFWC hope to improve the quality, availability and continuity of
care provided to our greater community.



2.  Replacement Facility
In May, the Board received a copy of and heard a presentation from our auditors, DZA, Luke

Zarecor, (CPA) and Joe Lodge, (CPA) and our Financial Advisor (Gary Hicks) regarding the PMH
replacement hospital feasibility study they completed.  The results of the study were very
favorable and painted a very positive picture for PMH to pursue funding from the USDA for a
replacement facility.  The biggest concern, understandably, is the impact the COVID-19
pandemic may have on our financial performance in 2020.  Fortunately, our financial
performance has remained strong (thanks to several sources of COVID-19 financial support –
SBA and HHS) and is projected to remain strong throughout 2020.  In fact, our current
projections for 2020 show a net income of $4.7 million (Attachment J) and a positive cash flow
of approximately $15.0 million (Attachment J-1).  I have included an updated Decision Tree:
Building A Replacement Hospital (Attachment B) for the Board to review.  We would like to
discuss this with the Board at the June Work Session and possibly establish a time frame for the
Board to make a decision to pursue USDA financing.  I am pushing for a time frame because it
was recently announced that there are no expected increases in federal interest rates for the
next two years.  If that is true, we could lock into a very low interest rate (2.5-3.5%) for our
project with the USDA.  I look forward to hearing your thoughts on this topic.

It should also be noted, that we have been working with the City of Prosser on the
establishment of an easement on our property on Gap Road and I-82 (future site of Prosser
Memorial Health).  The easement will be used by the City to bring water and sewer to several
locations along our property.  The easement will also be used in the future to bring additional
utilities (e.g. natural gas, electricity) to our property.  The City plans to begin work on the
water/sewer project in the fall of 2020 and complete the project in the spring of 2021 (before
the irrigation season begins).  Our legal counsel reviewed the proposed easement and
recommended several changes.  Those changes have been made and the easement is now
being signed by all parties and formally being adopted by the City of Prosser (Attachment C).
This is a significant step in our ability to utilize our land for a new facility.

3.  Sleep Lab
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic and the slowing down of most business activity in the area,

this time has presented us with several expansion possibilities.  One of these is the
establishment of a sleep lab at PMH.  We were recently contacted by Dr. Muhammad Riaz, a
board-certified sleep study physician (Attachment D), who used to work in Sunnyside.  Dr. Riaz
had a very strong following from the area, including the Tri-Cities, and is interested in opening a
sleep lab in Prosser.  Dr. Riaz provides both adult and pediatric services, which is not common in
the Yakima Valley.  Dr. Riaz is a friend of Dr. Hashmi’s and provides part-time hospitalist
services at Kadlec, where he is very well respected.  We are quickly putting together a business
plan for this service line, as Dr. Riaz has at least one other offer.  Our biggest issue with the
service is space but we are exploring several possibilities.  It should also be noted that this
service was in our Strategic Plan for the last two years, but we could never work out the
logistics, including recruiting a provider to oversee the program.  We will continue to study and
explore this service line and bring a business plan to the Board for review in July if the plan



shows it is feasible (meets a community need and provides a positive financial return on any
investment we PMH would make).

4.  Nuclear Medicine Update
We continue to aggressively pursue the completion of our Nuclear Medicine Project.  The

renovation of the therapy gym, that is rarely used, for nuclear medicine has been tentatively
approved by the Department of Health Construction Review Services, pending our responses to
their questions.  We are in the process of addressing their questions and have also asked to
make one change, which will benefit our surgery patients and their families.  We have proposed
to move the surgery waiting area into our current cafeteria space (Attachment E).  With all of
the COVID-19 concerns, we were very concerned with the small surgical waiting area proposed
(currently Victor Huyke’s office) and the inability for visitors to socially distance from each
other.  The cafeteria is about three times as large and provides a more relaxing space for family
and friends of surgical patients.  With this change, Victor would remain in his current office
which is close to his staff and appropriately sized for an office.  The cafeteria needs of PMH (we
currently have approximately 12-15 staff that utilize this space) will be met by moving the
cafeteria into the storage room next to the current cafeteria space.  While this space is smaller,
it should meet our needs.  In addition, we plan to reserve the Vineyard Conference Room from
11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. every day for staff to dine in.  If the Vineyard Conference Room is used
extensively by staff in the future, we would possibly convert the storage room into a
consultation room for surgeons to meet with family members.  This would be ideal, but we
must first ensure that the needs of our staff are met.  We are currently working with our
architects, KDA, on the final submission to the State and the development of bid documents.
We hope to have the project out for bid by the end of June.

5.  Communications & Marketing Report
The first six months of 2020 haven’t exactly played out like we were planning when the

Marketing and Communication Plan was developed and approved last December. We started
January and February with strong marketing campaigns for our Joint Replacement Program and
the Prosser Heart Center hosting community lunch and learns with Dr. Strebel and a Go Red For
Women Luncheon in February with Dr. Bhatti. Both events were extremely successful and
helped raise the level of awareness about these two new service lines.

March, April and May have been dedicated almost solely to COVID-19 communication both
internally and externally. The Communications Team has been instrumental in keeping our staff
and providers informed on a daily, weekly and monthly basis with updates from myself, Dr.
Sollers and the COVID-19 Task Force. I believe this open and honest communication, during a
time of great uncertainty, helped our team feel less anxious and that we were as responsive to
their questions, comments and concerns as we could be. In the community we’ve used social
media, print, TV and digital ads to let the public know that we’ve opened the Respiratory Care |
COVID-19 Clinic to assess respiratory illness and perform COVID-19 testing when necessary. The
secondary message in opening this clinic was to inform patients that it was safe to come to our



clinics for regular appointments and to the hospital if you had a medical emergency, diagnostic
imagining or outpatient services.

With both our internal and external communication our message is the same, that PMH is a
trusted healthcare organization on the frontlines of the latest information and updates from
the CDC, the Washington State Department of Health and the Washington State Hospital
Association, and as we know and learn more we will share it with our staff, providers and the
community. Our website, www.prosserhealth.org, is updated regularly with new information
and resources people can go to if they have questions. We published a community newsletter
in April that went to homes from Sunnyside to Richland, in both English and Spanish and we are
planning on mailing out another one this month focused on how to stay safe and healthy as our
state starts to open back up.

Through this challenging time, Prosser Memorial Health has been supported by our
community in ways I would never have imagined. In turn, we have tried to help support local
businesses and the community whenever an opportunity arises such as providing PMH Hygiene
Stations at the Prosser Farmers Market (Attachment F). We are once again partnering with
Brewminatti’s as they get their live streaming concert series up and running. We also partnered
with Jeff Place to put together a program highlighting the Prosser High School Senior Athletes,
as many of them didn’t get to finish out their high school sports career the way they would
have liked (Attachment G). Within the first few hours of the program being posted online it
received 11,000 views, with Prosser Memorial Health’s name on every page. It was a great way
to show our support to these students who have had a rough time adjusting to the “new
normal”.

This month we are ramping back up with comprehensive marketing campaigns for:

 Our Joint Replacement Program;
 The Prosser Heart Center;
 Our new Certified Nurse Midwife, Bailey Padilla;
 Our Pediatricians Dr. Min and Dr. Carl;
 The Dermascope skin cancer screenings Dr. Santa-Cruz performs; and
 Safety and Cleanliness at our clinics and hospital.

We are also working behind the scenes right now on campaigns welcoming both Dr. Tieu’s,
Certified Nurse Midwife Rebecca (Becky) Morris and Dr. Ana Garcia, pediatrician who will see
patients at our Grandview Clinic.

Prosser Memorial Health has partnered with the Thrive Coalition, the Prosser Boys & Girls Club and
Comprehensive Mental Health to create and launch an online, interactive platform called Mustangs
Matter addressing teen mental health. The program content is generated by students at Prosser High
School asking questions of our providers and others and identifying resources they can reach out to for
help. We are only in our third month of the program, but interest and feedback are growing. We are
honored to be a part of this important initiative and being able to leverage our resources with other

http://www.prosserhealth.org/


community organizations to make it easier for kids who need help to get it and to remove the negative
stigma in asking for help.

6. PMH IT Update
2020 has brought many changes to the technology sector. Attached is a short overview of

some of the changes that have impacted PMH (Attachment H).   PMH and Providence continue
to enhance technology security across both of our networks and systems that run
Epic. Providence has implemented CrowdStrike and Multi-Factor Authentication this year and
has many more security enhancements lined up for the year (Attachment H). In addition,
Adam Zoller, Chief Information Security Officer for Providence, will make a presentation at the
June Board Work session regarding the security measures Providence is taking. PMH has
replaced all of our internet circuits for all hospital and clinic locations with new fiber circuits
from LS Networks that have better failover (a method of protecting computer systems from
failing) and higher internet speeds. All circuits are fully operational today with internet speed
increases of 10 times faster to prior speeds (50 times faster at the Grandview Clinic). All
locations now have 1GB speeds making PMH internet access ready to handle future
growth. This is a big win for the hospital as all locations now have very fast internet speeds and
our technology environment is highly scalable for future growth.

PMH has purchased a new software program called Infosec to educate all staff and
providers on email phishing attacks (the fraudulent practice of sending emails purporting to be
from reputable companies in order to induce individuals to reveal sensitive information). The
educational campaigns are an active learning experience executing random email phishing
testing to see how staff are handling phishing emails and then adjusting needed phishing
training based on the results of the testing.

Lastly, our annual Epic upgrade from Providence happened June 14, 2020. The biggest
change this year was called Storyboard which changes the look and feel of Epic patient
information. The screen has been redesigned for the wider monitor screens we use and to
reduce clicks by making more information easily accessible from the patient information
landing page. The upgrade went very well, and the feedback has been good across the
board. One provider said the upgrade was “awesome”! Thank you to everyone that helped
make this upgrade go smoothly!

7.  ENT/Urology Equipment
With the addition of Dr. Coral Tieu, ENT and Dr. Thomas Tieu, Urology, we knew that it

would be necessary to purchase/lease equipment that would enable them to fully practice their
specialty.  Sara Dawson, Director of Surgical Services and Tricia Hawley, Director of the Specialty
Clinic, have been meeting with the doctors to evaluate the equipment we have and identify
replacement and new equipment we will need.  Sara and Tricia are also discussing options with
multiple vendors and evaluating lease versus purchase options.  The list of needed equipment is
going to be significant, especially in urology which is a new service for PMH.  It is anticipated
that the cost of the needed equipment will be in excess of $1.0 million.  A complete list will be



brought to the Board in July and will include a business plan that will demonstrate the financial
return for investing in these two specialties, and more importantly, the community need.

QUALITY

1.  COVID-19 Update
The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted lives in ways we never expected.  For patients locally

and across the country, the cancellation or postponement of non-emergent surgeries, clinic
visits and procedures delayed important medical care and has financially devastated many
hospitals and healthcare systems, even threatening the ability of many to keep their doors
open.  Today, as most states are “reopening”, there are questions about whether COVID-19
cases will spike again and if, or when, we’ll see a second wave.  However, there are two things
that are not in question:  First, PMH along with most other hospitals are focused on being ready
as communities reopen, and second, that we are as safe as ever for patients and providers.
Preventing infections has always been a top priority for PMH.  Our infection control practices
have improved dramatically over the last decade and we have continued to make
enhancements to these practices through this pandemic.  We are now more prepared than
ever to take care of the healthcare needs of our community.

The number of COVID-19 positive patients continues to go up locally and in several states
that are reopening.  The good news is that the death rate continues to drop.  It appears that we
are doing a better job of protecting our most vulnerable and that healthy individuals, with the
ability to fight if off, are contracting the illness and making a full recovery.  While most of the
State of Washington is beginning to “reopen,” Benton Franklin and Yakima Counties are still in
Phase I of the Governor’s four phase reopening plan.  Benton and Franklin Counties have
applied to move to Phase II, but have not yet heard back from the State.  At PMH our COVID
Clinic remains steady, averaging approximately 20 patients per day, with 5 positive tests per
day.  The recent relocation of the COVID Clinic from the Hospital to the Prosser Clinic has gone
well for patients and works much better for our staff. The majority of our COVID-19 positive
patients are able to recover at home, but we have seen a slight increase in the number of
COVID-19 positive inpatients in the last couple of weeks and recently had six, including one in
OB.  It should be noted that this surge did not compromise our capacity or ability to care for
non-COVID-19 patients.

The three main areas of concern regarding our preparedness during the pandemic focus on
PPE (personal protective equipment), testing and treatment.  Our PPE supplies are strong as
PPE becomes more available.  We are not experiencing any shortages and are prepared for a
possible surge.  Our testing capabilities have greatly improved in the last couple of weeks.  We
now have both the Abbott ID Now (5-10-minute turnaround time) and the Bio-Fire (45 minutes
TAT) available to do immediate testing.  Unfortunately, we do not have unlimited reagents, so
we have had to prioritize which patients are tested on these instruments.  Our highest priority
patients are inpatients (including OB), surgical patients, ER patients, staff and first responders
(e.g. police, fire).  COVID Clinic patient tests will continue to be sent out until reagents become



more available.  This is a significant improvement in our testing capabilities and will improve
patient care.  On the COVID-19 treatment front, we are now administering Remdesivir to our
inpatients as recommended by the FDA (Food and Drug Administration).  We are on an
allocation for Remdesivir by the State, but our supply of the drug has kept up with the demand.
We look forward to the day when there will be a COVID-19 vaccine, and hopefully, not too far
into the future.  Regardless, PMH is open for business and ready to address all of the healthcare
needs of our greater community.

2.  COVID-19 Financial Plan
Every hospital in America prepared for COVID-19 patients.  In addition, every hospital

stopped doing regularly scheduled procedures.  As a result, expenses have remained high and
revenues have virtually dried up.  The American Hospital Association (AHA) reports that
hospitals and health systems are projected to lose more than $200 billion between March 1 and
June 30 because of this pandemic.  While the government has provided $44 billion in relief
funds, the government assistance will not make up for most of the catastrophic losses created
by the pandemic.  As a result, most hospitals have had to implement furloughs/layoffs, pay
reductions or both.  We are fortunate at PMH as we have not taken any of these actions and
have no plans to do so.

At PMH, our financial performance has remained strong (with the assistance of government
aid) and our projections for the remainder of the year look strong.  To date, we have received
$18,464,248 of COVID-19 assistance from a variety of sources such as HHS, SBA, WSHA, CMS,
etc. (Attachment I).  Of these funds, we are currently only planning to return $6,596,297 of the
total to the originating source (Medicare Advanced Payment).  The remainder will be used to
make us whole as compared to our 2020 Budget (Attachment J).  As you can see in Attachment
J, we are projecting that by year end we will have a net income of $4.7 million, which is slightly
better than our budget.

We are doing better than expected because our revenue (volume) is coming back quicker
than we expected.  In May, our gross revenue was 65% of our budgeted gross revenue,
approximately $300,000 better than projected.  In June (through June 15) our gross revenue is
at 88% of budgeted gross revenue, compared to our projection of 75%.  This is a very positive
trend as our surgeries and other services continue to increase and bodes well for our financial
future.  Finally, one might ask, are we going to run out of financial assistance dollars before our
volumes fully return?  To date, we have utilized $3,561,533 (net) of the financial assistance and
have $5,169,826 (net) remaining (Attachment K). Based on our projections (which have been
conservative), we will have adequate financial assistance to get us through 2020 and position us
well to start 2021 in January.

3.  2019 PMH Critical Access Hospital (CAH) Annual Program Review
As a condition of participation with Medicare and Medicaid, all Critical Access Hospitals

must prepare an Annual Program Review (Attachment L) and have it approved by their Board
per CMS guidelines.  The report is an overview of the services we provide throughout Prosser
Memorial Health, our volumes, our community benefit, etc.  Kristi Mellema will review the 2019



PMH Annual Program Review with the Board at the June Board Meeting, and the Board will also
be asked to approve it at that meeting.

4.  Board Policies
Following our Board Policy to review all policies every three years, the Board will be asked to

review and approve the following four policies in June:  a) Medical Staff Recruitment
(Attachment M); b) Exclusive Designated Medical Specialty Services (Attachment N); c)
Affiliation (Attachment O); and d) Issue Resolution Procedure – Exempt Staff (Attachment P).
There are several minor changes (e.g. typos, title changes, etc.) that are being recommended by
Administration to make them easier to understand and comply with current PMH practices.  All
recommended changes are highlighted in yellow.  The Policies will be placed on the June
Consent Agenda for approval, however, if the Board would like to make more significant
changes or discuss the proposed policies, any Commissioner may remove a policy from the
Consent Agenda and place it on the regular Board Agenda, or discuss it at the June Board Work
Session.

5.  Contract Review
Prior to January 2020 we had been using a manual, paper system for contract management.

With the upgrade of our policy and procedure program to PolicyTech we also gained the
capability to have contract management oversight electronically (Attachment Q). The contracts
have been uploaded into the system and have their own section for appropriate management.
They can be organized by category or alphabetical. The benefits to having our contracts
electronically managed is not only for ease of use, but we can assign them for review, make
changes, run reports, and conduct a search for a particular one. The contract owner can be
alerted electronically in advance of a contract nearing expiration or requiring annual review.

This is a system that uses rules-based workflows and alerts to keep documents moving
through the process, alerting directors and managers via email and reminding document
owners when to update or retire policies/contracts, all of which is done electronically through a
secure cloud-based platform. When new documents are created and approved it can be
assigned to staff to read and attest to reading it. Exams can be developed to accompany the
policy that staff must pass before attesting. Reports can be run to check compliance. We can
also add contracts in a secure private file for annual review and staff can easily search for a
variety of policies with only one word. Kristi Mellema will briefly discuss our contract
management at the June Board Meeting.

6.  Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA) – Cassie Sauer
Cassie Sauer, President and CEO of WSHA, and Jacqueline Barton True, VP of Rural Health Programs

will make a presentation to the Board at the June Board Work Session.  Cassie and Jacqueline plan to
attend the meeting virtually and cover several topics. These include policy and advocacy, the COVID-19
pandemic and the financial impact of the pandemic on hospitals (Attachment R).  One area that Cassie is
also certain to discuss is the financial goal for the Hospitals for Healthy Future Political Action
Committee (formerly the Washington Hospital Political Action Committee).  The goal of WSHA and
the PAC is to ensure that hospitals have a meaningful voice during health care debates in



Olympia and Washington D.C., and to promote active advocacy for all Washington hospitals.
Cassie and Jacqueline plan to speak for thirty minutes and will answer any questions the Board
may have.

7.  June Board Meetings
In June, we plan to resume our regular schedule of hosting two Board Meetings.  The June

Board Work Session will be held on Tuesday, June 23rd and will include a presentation by Cassie
Sauer regarding recent WSHA activities.  We will also have a presentation from Adam Zoller
regarding IT security measures being taken by Providence and EPIC.  Finally, we plan to leave
time to discuss the PMH Replacement Hospital Feasibility Study and how to proceed, and our
evolving relationship with the Yakima Valley Farm Workers Clinics.  These are
information/discussion items with no action expected.  At the June regular Board meeting,
several short (5-10 minutes) presentations will be made regarding the 2019 CAH Annual
Review, the PMH Contract review process, the New Employee Orientation process and a
Marketing/Communications update.  The only action expected from these topics is the approval
of the 2019 PMH CAH Annual Review.

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT

1.  Medical Staff Recruitment
While many areas of the healthcare industry slowed down or stopped during this pandemic,

provider recruitment at PMH is not one of those areas.  For the past couple months, we have
been having discussion with a pediatrician from the Yakima Valley about the possibility of
joining us in Grandview.  I am excited to tell you that Dr. Ana Garcia, has agreed to join the PMH
Team and will work in the Grandview Clinic (Attachment S).  Dr. Garcia has been providing
services in Sunnyside for the past nine years and is currently Chief of Staff at Sunnyside
Hospital.  Dr. Garcia met with many of our providers, including our pediatricians, and was liked
by everyone.  She also comes highly recommended by several Sunnyside Hospital providers,
including Dr. Tamera Schille – YVFWC Pediatrician.  Dr. Garcia plans to begin with us in August
or early September.  Please join me in welcoming Dr. Garcia to PMH!

We were also successful in finding an experienced Certified Nurse Midwife (CNM) to join the
Prosser Women’s Health Center.  Rebecca (Becky) Morris, CNM, recently interviewed with us
and everyone was impressed with her experience, work ethic, personality and her commitment
to her patients (Attachment T).  Becky’s background in all areas of Women’s Health made her a
perfect match for our opportunity.  Becky plans to join us in early August and will work in the
Grandview and Benton City Clinics.  Please join me in welcoming Becky to the Prosser Area and
PMH!

For the past four years we have been aggressively building our Medical Staff and enhancing
the services we offer to the communities we serve.  This has not been inexpensive, as we have
often utilized provider recruitment firms and their fees range from $40,000-$50,000 per
placement.  Now that most of our recruitment efforts are complete, we are contemplating



using a program called Practice Match (Attachment U) to assist us in future recruitment efforts.
While we are still evaluating the program (e.g. checking references), there are significant
potential savings.  If everything checks out, we plan to contract with Practice Match in the near
future.  Finally, I want to mention that several specialists (hand surgeon, sleep medicine
specialist) have reached out to us with an interest in joining us.  We are currently working with
our Medical Staff and Leadership Team to determine if we should pursue any of the providers.
It sure is a lot easier when the providers come to us, stay tuned.

2.  Medical Staff Engagement
Last month Dr. Rivero and Christi Doornink-Osborn presented our Medical Staff Engagement

Plan for 2020.  One of the cornerstone events in that Plan has been the Medical
Staff/Board/Leadership dinner cruise on the Columbia River.  The event was scheduled to be
held on July 10th this year, but because of the pandemic we have postponed, but not cancelled
the event. We have rescheduled the dinner cruise for Friday, September 25th.  While we are
usually worried that it will be too hot in July, that will not be a concern in late September.  It
may be jacket weather, but it will once again provide us an opportunity to socialize and get to
know each other better.  The delay will also give some of our newest providers a chance to
meet everyone in an informal manner.  We are also planning to use this event to thank Dr.
Combs and Alan Steen, CRNA, for their many years of service to PMH.  Get your RSVP’s in early
as the boat will fill up quickly!

3.  Dr. Weslee Chew
While we have had much to celebrate the past couple of years, especially as it relates to

provider recruitment, I was saddened when Dr. Chew recently informed me that he is going to
pursue a new opportunity near Seattle.  Dr. Chew went to school and trained in the Seattle area
and believes that moving back to his area will be the best move for his career development.  His
long-term goal is to return to PMH sometime in the future, however, Dr. Chew plans to
continue working at PMH until October.  Dr. Chew has provided outstanding patient care at
PMH and will be greatly missed.  We wish him nothing but the best in his future endeavors.

The departure of Dr. Chew has caused us to think about our Medical Staff Model and re-
evaluate how we provide general surgery.  One of the challenges that we have is that our
general surgeons are performing 60-70% GI procedures and only 30-40% general surgery
procedures.  A new model under consideration is to replace Dr. Chew with a gastroenterologist
(GI), rather than hiring another general surgeon (Attachment V).  This model may better meet
the needs of our community and increase provider satisfaction.  This model may also be
financially rewarding for PMH as GI specialists provide a good return on investment
(Attachment W).  We will continue to explore and discuss our options in the coming weeks with
the Medical Staff and Leadership Team.



EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

1.  Employee Engagement
While it is not officially summer yet, we kicked it off on June 5th by celebrating National

Donut Day (Attachment X).  We invited Blissful Bites, a local donut truck that makes fresh
donuts, back to PMH to thank our staff and forget about the COVID-19 pandemic for a few
moments.  It was also interesting to learn about the history of National Donut Day and its
connection back to our Veterans who fought for the freedoms we enjoy today.  While not the
healthiest choice (all in moderation), the donuts were well received.  On July 2, we will be
celebrating the Fourth of July at PMH.  The Leadership Team will once again be washing the
cars of our staff, Board and Medical Staff, and providing a good old-fashioned picnic lunch with
all the fixings (provided by AC’s Barbeque).  We will be conducting the event at both the
hospital and the Benton City Clinic.  We encourage everyone to come on over and get your car
washed while you enjoy a picnic lunch.  There will be more details coming out about this event
in the near future (Attachment Y).  Also included in your packet you will find the June Employee
Newsletter (Attachment Z) which highlights some of our May activities including our Hospital
Week festivities, which were conducted despite the challenges provided by the COVID-19
pandemic.

2.  Management By Strengths (MBS)
The annual Employee Engagement Survey we conduct with our staff and providers each

October has identified communication as an area that needs improvement year after year. As
we drilled down into what “communication” means to the team it was clear that it means many
different things to different people. Since we’ve seen communication improve among the
leadership team, we realized that one of the tools we have provided to this group to strengthen
communication is a personality assessment tool provided to us by the Studer Group called
Management by Strength (MBS). Each leader takes the online assessment survey and is
assigned a color that helps define their personality AND how they prefer to receive
communication and how they deliver it. Attached is a 1-page reference sheet of our leaders
and their defined “color” as a quick reference tool we use (Attachment AA). An MBS trainer
from Studer has presented the findings to the leadership team and how to use the information
to be a better communicator and teammate. Starting July 1, Shannon Hitchcock and Kristi
Mellema will work with each department leader to have their teams take the MBS survey,
interpret what the results mean to the individual, to the team, and to Prosser Memorial Health
as a whole. We will also have our providers take the MBS. This will go a long way in improving
our communication and understanding of one another. We will also do this for the Board if
they are interested in taking the survey.

3.  New Employee Orientation
For my first couple of years at PMH we were hearing that new staff at PMH didn’t feel well

oriented to our organization. Up to that point, orientation of new staff was the responsibility of
Department Leaders.  Unfortunately, the orientations were not consistent and lacked definition
of what should be included.  As a result, Human Resources and the Leadership Team did a
complete overhaul of our new employee orientation.  The orientation is now coordinated by HR



with almost all members of the Leadership Team presenting to the group. The orientation lasts
one day and provides a wonderful overview of what PMH is all about.  We cover our history,
Mission, Vision, Values and everything in between.  Our new program provides an excellent
way for our new staff to meet our Leadership Team and begin to engage with our organization.
Ro Kmetz will briefly review this program with the Board at their June meeting.

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

1.  Financial Performance - May
Like April, May continued the trend of poor financial performance because of low volumes,

but being saved by financial assistance (Attachment BB).  In May our gross revenue was 35%
($4.9 million) below budget and 25% ($3.0 million) below last May.  Fortunately, we had COVID-
19 relief funds ($1.3 million) to make up for our volume declines and ended the month right at
our budgeted net revenue of $5.6 million.  For the first time in several months, our expenses
were less than budget by $526,324, which resulted in an operating income of $1.0 million
compared to our budget of $462,387.  After adding in our non-operating income, our total net
income (bottom line) for May was a profit of $1,070,603 compared to a budget of $521,464.  All
things considered, May was a good financial month for us, especially as our volumes start to
increase and return to normal.

Year-to-date our financial performance also remains strong due to COVID-19 financial
assistance we have received.  With the addition of $3.5 million of net financial assistance, we
currently have a net income of $2.0 million compared to a budget of $1.5 million.  We are in a
very good position for the rest of the year, especially if our business continues to return at a
faster pace than projected.  It should be noted that there is still a lot of uncertainty about how
to financially record all of the COVID-19 financial assistance because there has been little
guidance given by the federal government.  As a result, we are following the recommendations
of our auditors, DZA, and our financial consultants, Moss Adams, to ensure we are
appropriately recording the financial assistance we receive. As a result of all the financial
assistance, many of our closely monitored metrics have dramatically improved.  For example,
cash flow for May was a positive $10.25 million and year-to-date it is a positive $18.56 million.
This has assisted in raising our days cash on hand to 221.0 days compared to 120.55 days last
May.  In addition, our net days in accounts receivable are down to 48 days, the lowest they
have been in several years.  In fact, most of our key financial metrics are now better than last
year and our 2020 budget.  Our goal is to continue this strong financial performance through
the remainder of 2020.

2.  PMH Foundation Update
On behalf of the Foundation Board of Directors, myself, Shannon Hitchcock and Stephanie

Titus, thank you to everyone who has donated to the Foundation this year! This time last year
our employee payroll deduct donations were at $1,112 from January-June. This year we are at
$11,036! That is an amazing jump in donations and says a lot about employee and board
support and commitment to the good work our Foundation does. Thank you!



Mark your calendar, and cross your fingers, that we will be able to host the first annual Wine
Country Classic Golf Tournament Saturday, September 19th at Black Rock Creek Golf Course.
Look for more information to come out later this month.

Also, thank you for your support of the Foundation Gift Shop and Busy Bean Café. Proceeds
from these two areas fund the Prosser Memorial Health Auxiliary Scholarship Program. For the
second year in a row we are able to fund three $2,000 scholarships. Later this month we will
announce the Auxiliary Scholarships recipients. We will award one $2,000 scholarship to a high
school student from the Kiona-Benton School District and two $2,000 scholarships from Prosser
High School. Sadly, we didn’t have any applicants from the Grandview School District even
though we reached out to them many times. We hope to see more applicants from all three
school districts next year.

Finally, the PMH Board will be asked to approve the revised PMH Foundation Bylaws
(Attachment CC) and the Scope of Service Agreement between PMH and the Foundation
(Attachment DD), which was recently approved electronically by the Foundation, at the June
Board meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other Hospital activities, please contact me
at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the Hospital.

Stay well!






















































































































































































































































































































































	Board Work Session Agenda - Revised 6.23.20
	Board Meeting Agenda Revised 6.25.20
	Board Work Plan - FY 2020
	Strategic Plan Scorecard - 2020
	Patient Care Scorecard - 2020
	5.26.20 Board Work Session Minutes
	5.28.20 Board Meeting Minutes
	6.24.20 Finance Committee Agenda
	5.26.20 Finance Committee Minutes
	CEO Memo - June 2020
	Attachment A - MOU - PMH & YVFWC
	Attachment B - Decision Tree:  Building a Replacement Hospital
	Attachment C -PMH  Easement - Gap Rd. Property
	Attachment D - Dr. Muhammad Riaz - Sleep Medicine - CV
	Attachment E - Nuc Med Space
	Attachment F - PMH Hygiene Stations
	Attachment G - PHS Senior Athletes
	Attachment H - PMH   IT Update
	Attachment I - COVID-19 Financial Assistance
	Attachment J - COVID-19 Financial Projections Plan
	Attachment J-1 - Cash Flow Projection
	Attachment K - Net Financial Assistance Remaining
	Attachment L - 2019 PMH Critical Access Hospital Annual Program Review
	Attachment M - Board Policy -Medical Staff Recruitment - 100.0037
	Attachment N - Board Policy - Exclusive Designated Medical Specialty Services - 100.0038
	Attachment O - Board Policy - Affiliation 100.0039
	Attachment P - Board Policy - Issue Resolution Procedure - Exempt Staff 100.0040
	Attachment Q - Policy Tech
	Attachment R - Cassie Sauer/WSHA - Presentation
	Attachment S - Dr. Ana Garcia - CV
	Attachment T - Rebecca (Becky) Morris , CNM - CV
	Attachment U - Practice Match
	Attachment V - Medical Staff Model FY 2017-2024
	Untitled
	Attachment W - Physician Specialities That Generate The Most Revenues
	Attachment X - National Donut Day - June 5th
	Attachment Y - Leadership Car Wash & BBQ 7.2.20
	Attachment Z - The PULSE - June 2020
	Attachment AA - Manage By Strengths (MBS)
	Attachment BB - May Financials
	Attachment CC - PMH Foundation ByLaws
	Attachment DD - Scope of Services Agreement - PMH & PMH Foundation
	Untitled

